

# RAHEJA QBE GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

# Nomination & Remuneration Policy

Version	3.0	2025
Approval	RQBE Board	
Owner	Head – Human Resources Chief Compliance Officer	
Frequency of review	Annually	
Doc. Name	RQBE Nomination & Remuneration Policy	



# Contents

1.	Introduction	3
1.1	Scope & Applicability	3
1.2	Objective	3
1.3	Alignment with Risk Management framework	4
1.4	Definitions	4
1.5	Role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):	5
2	Principles and framework	6
2.1	Remuneration and reward framework	6
2.2	Appointment & Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors	7
2.3	Appointment & Remuneration of KMPs including Managing Director and Executive Directors	7
2.4	Remuneration of Other employees	12
2.5	Loans and/or advances	12
3	Review and Disclosure	14



#### 1. Introduction

### 1.1 Scope & Applicability

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy including the Remuneration framework is applicable to:

- a) Non-executive Directors and Chairman of the Company.
- b) The remuneration framework covers Executive Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and all employees of the Company, employed on a permanent basis.

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy V2.0 shall be applicable for remuneration payable to Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the company, for Performance Year beginning from FY 2025-26

### 1.2 Objective

The objective of the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of Raheja QBE General Insurance Company Limited ("the Company" or "RQBE") is to focus on enhancing the value, to retain and motivate employees and Directors for achieving the objectives of the Company and to place the Company in a leadership position through the appropriate selection and compensation framework/ strategy.

This includes recommendations of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee ("NRC") to the Board on:

- The employment arrangements of the Managing Director and CEO and any executives reporting to him/her:
- The remuneration framework of any other persons or categories of persons covered by this Policy; and
- Non-Executive Director remuneration.

The Board believes that orderly succession contributes to strong corporate governance and is achieved by careful planning and continual review. Directors consider the size and composition of the Board on periodical basis, as part of the Board review procedure. The Board has a skills matrix covering the competencies and experience of each member.

The NRC, in particular, assesses the appropriateness of remuneration frameworks and practices in order to fairly and responsibly reward the Managing Director and CEO and other members of the Senior Management and KMP. The NRC recognises that the key to achieving sustained performance is to motivate and retain quality employees and align executive reward with changing shareholder wealth.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Board shall, while formulating the policy to ensure that

- a) The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors & employees of the quality required to run the Company successfully;
- b) Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks;
- c) Remuneration components are aligned effectively with prudent risk taking to ensure that remuneration is adjusted for all types of risk taking. Remuneration outcomes are symmetric with risk outcomes and
- d) Remuneration to Directors, KMPs and Senior Management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

RQBE's governance of remuneration focuses on aligning the remuneration and reward strategy and frameworks with robust risk management practices and strong governance principles. While deciding the policy on remuneration of Directors, the NRC may consider amongst other things, the duties and responsibilities cast by the Companies Act, 2013, Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (hereinafter referred as 'IRDAI'), various Codes of Conduct, Articles of Association, the valuable contributions, and inputs from Directors based on their knowledge, experience and expertise in shaping the destiny of the Company, etc.



The Policy is guided by a reward framework and set of principles and objectives as more fully and particularly envisaged under Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013, and as per Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (Corporate Governance for Insurers) Regulations,2024 read with Master Circular on Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2024and

other applicable guidelines of IRDAI and principles pertaining to qualifications, positive attributes, integrity and independence of Directors, etc.

The policy is based on the following principles:

- > Effective Governance of Compensation active Board oversight
- > Effective alignment of compensation to prudent risk taking
- > Effective supervisory oversight and engagement by stakeholders.

The Board aims to have remuneration structures in place that encourage the achievement of a return for shareholders in terms of both dividends and growth in share price.

# 1.3 Alignment with Risk Management framework

This Policy is designed to align with RQBE's risk management framework. Some key components of that framework include:

- a) The RQBE Risk Management Strategy ("RMS") that outlines the principles, framework and approach to risk management adopted by RQBE and is embedded for providing a consistent approach to managing risk;
- b) An extensive system of delegated authorities that support the structured and measured cascade of risk appetite set by the relevant boards, empower employees to make decisions within clearly defined risk limits and therefore control the extent to which individuals can commit the current or future assets of RQBE; and
- c) RQBE policies employees are required to adhere to a range of policies to ensure risk- taking is well managed, strong governance structures are in place and high ethical standards are maintained

#### 1.4 Definitions

For the purpose of this Policy, the following definitions apply.

"Authority" means the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (IRDAI)

"Board" means Board of Directors of the Company.

"Clawback" means a contractual agreement between the employee and the Company in which the employee agrees to return previously paid or vested remuneration to the Company under certain circumstances

"Companies Act" means the Companies Act, 2013 (and Companies Act, 1956, as applicable) and Rules framed there under, as amended from time to time.

"Directors" mean Directors of the Company, including Non-Executive Directors (NEDs)

"Fixed Pay" means fixed remuneration which includes basic pay, allowances, perquisites (as defined under the Income-Tax Act, 1961), contribution towards superannuation/ retirement benefits and all other fixed items of compensation.

"Insurance Act" means the Indian Insurance Act, 1938 and the Insurance Amendment Act, 2015 and Rules framed therein under as amended from time to time.

**"Key Managerial Personnel"** members of the core management team of the Company as identified by the NRC as such including but not limited to all whole-time directors or Managing Directors or Chief Executive Officer and the functional heads one level below the Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer, including the Chief Financial Officer, Appointed Actuary, Chief Investment Officer, Chief Risk Officer, Chief Compliance Officer and the Company Secretary. Please refer Annexure 1 for the list of latest Key Managerial Personnel.

"Malus" means an arrangement that permits the Company to prevent vesting of all or part of the amount of a deferred

remuneration. Malus arrangement does not reverse vesting after it has already occurred

- "Remuneration" means any money, or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered by him / her and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961.
- "Risk and Control functions staff" means employees of the Company belonging to Risk, Audit and Compliance verticals
- "Senior Management" as per Companies Act, 2013 means personnel of the Company who are members of its core management team one level below the Board of Directors (excluding Board of Directors) including Functional Heads.
- "Share Linked Instruments" in relation to remuneration of KMP shall mean (i) employee stock option schemes; ii) employee stock purchase schemes; and (iii) stock appreciation rights schemes

It is clarified that Cash Settled Stock Appreciation Rights (CSARs) shall be treated as Share Linked Instruments

"Variable Pay" shall include cash bonus/incentive and/or Share Linked Instruments given basis performance and includes measures of individual, unit or group performance. This is financial compensation over and above the fixed pay. The parameters of achieving individual / unit / group performance for earning variable pay shall be clarified in a manner that it does not encourage imprudent behavior at any level.

#### Abbreviations:

NRC – Nomination & Remuneration Committee NR Policy – Nomination & Remuneration Policy

# 1.5 Role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):

- The NRC shall oversee and govern the compensation practices of the Company. The NRC in consultation with Risk Management Committee shall make a coordinated effort to have an integrated approach to the formulation of remuneration policy.
- > The NRC may decide upon manner of effective evaluation of performance of Board, its committee and Individual Directors.
- The NRC shall identify the list of members of core management team of the company which are one level below the MD/CEO and identify them as KMP as per the requirement of IRDAI guideline.
- Recommend to the Board the appointment / reappointment and removal of Directors and KMPs;
- ➤ Ensure that members of the Board/NRC are not placed in a position of actual & perceived conflict of interests with respect to remuneration decisions. In case of any remuneration discussion/decision of directors and/or KMP, it shall be ensured that the concerned director and/or KMP shall not participate in the discussion/voting of the resolution. The NRC may constitute processes and checks to identify and eliminate any potential conflict of interest from time to time.
- > The NRC may issue guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and manuals in supplement and for better implementation of this policy as considered appropriate;
- > The NRC may Delegate any of its powers to one or more of its members.
- The criteria and policy on remuneration are subject to review by the NRC / RMC & the Board of the Company annually.
- > Perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its duties

# 2 Principles and framework



# 2.1 Remuneration and reward framework

RQBE remuneration and reward framework is outlined in the table below:

regal remaineration	Total remuneration and reward framework is outlined in the table below:  Total remuneration and reward framework				
Component	Design	Purpose and link to strategy			
Total Fixed Pay Fixed remuneration Retirals Perquisi tes	<ul> <li>Total Fixed Pay shall include Fixed Remuneration, retirals, perquisites and all other fixed items of remuneration</li> <li>Fixed remuneration consists of Annual Base Salary (Fixed Salary including allowances/ or as per Company Flexible Compensation Structure Guidelines/Car Policy, if eligible) and expressed as Rupees currency as an annual amount.</li> <li>As required by the local employment law, includes Provident Fund and Gratuity contributions</li> <li>Perquisites as per income Tax Act 1961 and shall include benefits like provision of health and welfare programs, Superannuation, Term Insurance, Accident Insurance, Medical Insurance and other non-cash awards</li> <li>Delivered in accordance with terms and conditions of employment.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Retention and attraction – market competitive.</li> <li>Positioned at a level that reflects the contribution and value to the Company and as required by each geographic market with a target generally at the 50<sup>th</sup> percentile but may be around a range of 25<sup>th</sup> – 75<sup>th</sup> percentile</li> <li>Recognises capability, scope and complexity of business, expertise and performance of the individual</li> <li>Designed to provide a predictable 'base' level of remuneration</li> <li>May be reviewed annually on 1 April or on promotion.</li> </ul>			
Performance Incentive/ Bonus (STI, Short Term Incentive): cash	• All eligible employees incentives are	Rewards performance over a short-term period - aligned and linked to annual business plans, risk-adjusted financial metrics and PMP objectives  Links to performance —based on Company and individual performance, giving clear alignment with shareholder expectations			



Total remuneration and reward framework			
Component	Design	Purpose and link to strategy	
Long Term Incentive Plans	Considered for Senior Management and KMPs to create value for the company.	Objective is value creation, employee motivation and retention.	

# 2.2 Appointment & Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors

# **Appointment of Non-Executive Directors**

When the need for a new Non-Executive Director is identified, the candidate shall be appointed as a Non-Executive Director in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company and basis the required experience and competencies of the candidate to be appointed as a Non-Executive Director. Generally, a list of potential candidates is identified based on the skills required and other issues such as geographic location and diversity criteria. External consultants may be employed where necessary to search for prospective board members. Candidates are assessed against the required skills and on their qualifications, backgrounds and personal qualities. In addition, candidates are sought who have insurance/ relevant experience, a proven track record in creating shareholder value, utmost integrity, a commitment to corporate governance, the required time to commit to the position, a strategic mindset, a preparedness to constructively question and challenge and an independence of mind.

An Independent Director may be appointed for a term of upto 5 consecutive years and shall be eligible for reappointment for second term on passing special resolution. No ID shall hold office for more than 10 years. After completion of 10 years reappointment can be done only after cooling off period of atleast 3 years

The maximum age limit of Non-Executive Directors, including chairperson of the board, shall be 75 years and shall not continue on the Board after attaining 75 years of age

#### **Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors**

The Non-Executive Directors (NEDs) may be paid remuneration by way of commission and/or sitting fees as may be decided by the Board of Directors and Shareholders of the Company from time to time.

At present, the Company pays sitting fees to the Independent Directors for attending the meetings of the Board and Audit Committee constituted by the Board; the reimbursement of expenses of the NEDs for participation in the Board and Committee meetings is also provided for in the policy. The Board shall, at its discretion, pay sittings fees to the Independent Directors for attending any other Committee meetings.

The Board may, subject to compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and at its discretion, advise payment of remuneration in the form of profit related commission to the non – executive directors, subject to the Company making profits, subject to an upper limit of INR.30,00,000/= (INR Thirty lacs) per annum for each such Director. The NEDs are not eligible for any share linked benefits of the company.

# 2.3 Appointment & Remuneration of KMPs including Managing Director and Executive Directors

#### Appointment of MD, CEO and ED

When the need for a new Executive Director is identified, the candidate shall be appointed as a Executive Director in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company and basis the required experience and competencies of the candidate to be appointed as a Executive Director. Generally, a list of potential candidates is identified based on the skills required and other issues such as geographic location and diversity criteria. External consultants may be employed where necessary to search for prospective board members. Candidates are assessed against the required skills and on their qualifications, backgrounds and personal qualities. In addition, candidates are sought who have insurance/ relevant experience, a proven track record in creating shareholder value, utmost integrity, a commitment to corporate governance, the required time to commit to the position, a

strategic mindset, a preparedness to constructively question and challenge and an independence of mind.

The term of office and remuneration of Managing Director and or CEO and Executive Directors are subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, Shareholders, IRDAI as applicable in terms of the provisions of Insurance Act, 1938 and the Companies Act, 2013, amended from time to time. However, the term of office of MD shall not exceed continuous period of 12 years if appointed by major shareholders/promoters. Company will seek approval from the Authority to extend the tenure till 15 years, whenever required. If MD/CEO is not appointed by major shareholders/promoters, then the maximum term of office shall not exceed continuous period of 15 years.

The appointment, re-appointment or termination of appointment as well as the remuneration payable to the MD and or CEO and ED is governed by the provisions of Section 34A of the Insurance Act, 1938 and in compliance thereof and notwithstanding the applicable sections of the Companies Act, 2013, and IRDAI Guidelines shall be effective only when approved by the Authority. While appointing/re-appointing MD and or CEO and ED, company will ensure that the upper age limit of 70 years is not exceeded.

# Remuneration guidelines for MD, CEO and ED

Remuneration of the Executive Directors reflects the overall remuneration philosophy and guiding principle of the Company. The NRC while designing the remuneration considers the level and composition of remuneration to be reasonable and appropriate to attract, retain and motivate the person to ensure the quality required to run the Company successfully. While considering the remuneration, the NRC ensures a balance between fixed and performance linked variable pay reflecting short- and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

The NRC considers that a successful Remuneration Policy must ensure that some part of the remuneration is linked to the achievement of corporate performance targets.

Remuneration for Managing Director and Executive Directors are designed to remunerate them fairly and responsibly. The remuneration comprises of fixed pay (includes basic pay, allowances, perquisites, retirals and all other items of fixed remuneration) and variable pay (includes STI and LTI given basis performance) as per Rules of the Company and as may be mutually agreed to by the Managing Director/Executive Director(s) and the NRC/Board.

While considering the appointment and remuneration of Managing Director and Executive Directors, the NRC shall consider the industry benchmarks, merit and seniority of the person and shall ensure that the remuneration proposed to be paid is commensurate with the remuneration packages paid to similar senior level counterpart(s) in other companies.

Remuneration also aims to motivate personnel to deliver Company's key business strategies, create a strong performance-oriented environment and reward achievement of meaningful targets over the short and long-term.

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay, remuneration to its Managing Director and Executive Directors subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, Shareholders, IRDAI as applicable in terms of the provisions of Insurance Act, 1938 and the Companies Act, 2013, amended from time to time.

If any Managing Director and Executive Directors draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the applicable provisions of the Insurance Act, 1938 and the Companies Act, 2013 or without the prior sanction of the IRDAI, where required, he/she shall refund such sums to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company.

The provisions of the Insurance Act, 1938 with regard to remuneration of the Managing Director and/or the Chief Executive Officer requires the prior approval of the Authority. Fixed Pay and Maximum Variable Pay shall be approved by IRDAI at the beginning of the Financial year / Performance year. The policy specifies that conferring any benefit or provision or providing any amenity or perquisite in whatever form, whether during or after the termination of the office of the Managing Director and or the Chief Executive Officer, shall be deemed to be a provision relating to his/her remuneration. Payment of Actual Variable Pay shall be decided, and approved by the Board of the insurer, as per the actual performance of MD/CEO/WTD in line with the approval given by the IRDAI, after the end of the Financial Year / Performance year.

#### Remuneration framework of Key Managerial Personnel including MD and or CEO and ED

NRC is required to ensure that remuneration package and payment for KMPs are as per the remuneration policy approved by board.

The Company while deciding the remuneration of the KMPs takes into consideration, inter alia, the following items:

- merit and seniority of the person
- > employment scenario, and
- > industry benchmark

The Remuneration structure of KMPs including MD/CEO/Executive Directors shall broadly comprise the following

- a. Fixed Pay Fixed Pay includes Basic Pay, allowances, perquisites (as defined under the Income-Tax Act, 1961), contribution towards superannuation / retirement benefits and all other fixed items of compensation
- b. Variable Pay Variable Pay includes cash bonus/incentive and/or Share Linked Instruments /CSAR given basis performance and includes measures of individual, unit, or company performance. This is financial compensation over and above the fixed pay.

# i. Composition of Variable Pay:

- Variable Pay shall comprise of Share Linked Instruments and cash in the form of bonus or incentives and shall be paid out not more frequently than annually
- Share Linked Instruments can be in the form of Employee Stock Options, Cash Settled Stock Appreciation Rights(CSAR) or any other instrument where the settlement, on vesting/exercise, happens in the form of shares
- > Company shall ensure that there is a proper balance between Fixed Pay and Variable Pay
- ➤ KMPs of the Company shall not be issued/granted any sweat equity shares.

# ii. Limits on Variable Pay:

- At least 50% of Fixed Pay will be variable and paid based on individual, business-unit and Company performance. The total Variable Pay (including cash bonus and Share Linked Instrument) shall not exceed 300% of the Fixed Pay.
- In case the total Variable Pay is up to 200% of the Fixed Pay, a minimum of 50% of the total Variable Pay and in case the Variable Pay is above 200%, a minimum of 70% of the total Variable Pay shall be via Share Linked Instruments.
- In case of Share Linked Instruments, the total number of stock options granted in a year shall not exceed 1% of the paid-up capital of the Company.
- > The total number of stock options issued, granted, vested or outstanding at any point of time shall not exceed 5% of the paid-up capital of the Company

The value of the Share Linked Instrument, for the purpose of quantifying the Variable Pay, shall be determined basis below. In the case of ESOPs, approval shall be granted by IRDAI on an amount basis, for the maximum value of ESOPs that can be granted by the insurer. preferably, Black-Scholes method be used for grant of ESOPs. For unlisted entities, fair value of equity shares determined by Category-1 merchant banker registered with SEBI shall be considered for the purpose of benefit calculation and shall not be more than 3 months before the date of such allotment.

# iii. Determination of Variable Pay

- > The variable pay shall be "pay-at-risk" and shall depend on the performance and risk outcomes at individual, business units and company-wide level
- The Variable Pay can be reduced to zero in case of deterioration of financial performance of the Company and other defined metrics basis the Company's Variable Pay policy
- The minimum parameters which shall be taken into account for performance assessment of all KMPs (including MD/CEO/WTD) for payment of variable pay shall include at least, the following Key performance Indicators (KPIs): Overall financial soundness such as Net Worth position, solvency, growth in Assets Under Management, Operating Profit/Net Profit, Compliance with Expenses of Management Regulations, Claim efficiency in terms of settlement and outstanding, Improvement in grievance redressal status/ position, Reduction in Unclaimed Amounts of policyholders, Renewal Rate, Overall Compliance status w.r.t. all applicable laws
- The KPIs mentioned above shall have at least 60% of total weightage in the performance assessment matrix of MD/CEO/WTDs and at least 30% of total weightage in the performance assessment matrix

- of other KMPs individually.
- > The above parameters shall also be used as an input for determining fixed pay increments as well
- The above is an indicative list of KPIs and the NRC may modify KPIs as it may deem fit in the context of making a fair performance evaluation taking into account new regulation, economic and business climate, and retention of talent in the context of reward and remuneration and the prevalent market practices. The company may configure weightage for each of the above parameters suitably depending on the respective roles.

#### iv. Deferral of Variable Pay

- > Of the total Variable Pay, at least 50% shall be deferred. The deferred remuneration could be in the form of share linked instruments and/or cash bonus/incentive.
- ➤ The deferral period would be minimum of three years. In case of Share Linked Instrument, the actual deferral period shall be governed by the relevant rules of Share Linked Plan which will be approved by the Board and Shareholders.
- ➤ Where variable pay is mix of cash and share linked instruments and such cash component of variable pay is Twenty-Five lakhs or under, no deferral requirement for the cash component would be necessary.
- Where variable pay is a mix of cash and share linked instruments and such cash component of variable pay is more than Rs. 25 lakhs (Rupees Twenty-Five Lakhs), payment of such cash component / performance bonus is allowed as per the following modes:
  - Payment of first Twenty-Five Lakhs (Rs.25 lakhs) without any deferment and
  - Payment of the balance Cash component of variable pay above Rs. 25 lakhs as under:
    - 50% without deferment.
    - balance-50% to be deferred over the deferral period proposed by the insurer, subject to a minimum period of 3 years and as per the provisions of clause 9.2(f)(ii)(D) of the Master Circular on deferral arrangements.
- The NRC may change the deferral quantum and period basis industry and regulatory context, company risk context and emerging best practices from time to time
- Upon superannuation / resignation/ termination/ retirement/death/any other reason of separation of the employee before the deferred CSAR amounts Payout dates, payment will be done as per Cash Settled Stock Appreciation Rights Plan, as may be approved by board & NRC from time to time. In case of re-appointment after retirement the deferred pay due at the time of retirement (i.e., prior to reappointment) shall be paid only for the respective years to which it is originally deferred
- Upon superannuation / resignation / termination / retirement / death / any other reason of separation of the employee before the deferred Cash Bonus (STI) amounts Payout dates, payment will be done as per table below (Cash Bonus Separation Clause)
- In case of termination of employment on account of fraud /criminal offences, etc. or as per directives of court/tribunal/other component authorities the deferred pay shall be forfeited.

# **Cash Bonus Separation Clause**

S. No.	Separations	Deferred Cash Bonus
1	Resignation	All deferred cash bonus due to the employee can be paid if the employee resigns post the occurrence of due date. Post resignation, remaining deferred cash bonus which are not settled stand forfeited with effect from the date of resignation.
2	Termination due to Cause	All the deferred cash which were not settled time of such termination of employment for Cause shall stand <b>forfeited</b> with effect from the date of such termination.
3	Retirement	All the deferred cash bonus shall be eligible for settlement

4	Death	All the deferred cash bonus shall be eligible for settlement in the hands of beneficiary/legal heir/nominee in accordance	
5	Permanent Disability	All the deferred cash bonus shall be eligible for settlement	
	Transfer or deputation		
	from/ to		
6	Company, Subsidiary, or Holding	All the deferred cash shall be eligible for settlement, unless otherwise decided by the Board / Committee and such decision shall be final.	
	Company or Joint Venture		
	Partners Long Leave (for		
7	more than 60 days)	All the deferred cash bonus shall be eligible for settlement	
8	Long Leave for medical reasons (for more than 60 days)	All the deferred cash bonus shall be eligible for settlement	
9	Any Other Reason	Treatment of the deferred cash bonus shall be decided by the Committee / Board and such decision shall be final	

- c. **Guaranteed Bonus:** No amount of bonus can be guaranteed to KMPs except for hiring/sign-on/joining bonus to be paid to new hire. Hiring/joining/ sign-on bonus only to the new hires and limit it to the first year of employment. The said bonus shall not form part of Fixed or Variable pay
- d. **Severance Pay:** The Company will not grant severance pay other than accrued benefits like gratuity, pension etc. to KMPs except in cases where it is mandatory by statue and would be paid only with prior approval of the Board. Such severance pay would not include notice period pay.
- e. The annual remuneration of KMPs including MD/CEO/ED (including all perquisites, plus bonuses etc, by whatsoever names) in excess of INR 4,00,00,000/- shall be borne by the shareholders.
- f. No remuneration shall be paid to the Whole Time Director, Managing Director, CEO or Key Managerial Personnel by any of the promoter/investors or by the group companies of the promoter companies.
- g. Malus & Clawback Arrangement: The deferred variable pay in a year shall be subject to:
  - i. **Malus arrangement** wherein in case of subdued or negative financial performance arising not on account of gross negligence or misconduct of the KMPs, the Company may withhold cash bonus or vesting of Stock Options and may lapse unvested Stock Options in accordance with the plan.
  - ii. **Clawback arrangement** wherein in case of gross negligence or misconduct or cause as defined in the Company's code of conduct, the KMP shall be liable to return previously paid or vested Variable Pay.
  - iii. The norms of Malus and Clawback shall be decided by the NRC based on actual/realized performance of the year, legal enforceability, and verifiable measures of risk outcomes.
  - iv. NRC may invoke Malus and Clawback clause with respect to the KMPs in the following illustrative scenarios:
    - > Significant negative trend in the defined KPIs of the company
    - High Risk Audit Observation
    - > Gross negligence, integrity breach, Reckless, or deliberate actions. Errors of judgment shall not be considered as violation
    - Material Misstatement of the company's financial statement/results due to result of misconduct including fraud
    - ➤ Non-compliance on Corporate Governance and Regulatory matters
    - Any other situation where the Board and the NRC deems invoking Malus and/or Clawback provision is necessary and justified.
  - v. While determining the causes for Negative trend in the above defined minimum KPIs, NRC may take into consideration and have due regard to the fact whether the deterioration was for factors within

control or whether it was on account of conditions like global market headwinds, industry performance, changes in legal/regulatory regime, force majeure events like occurrence of natural disasters, pandemic, other socio-economic conditions etc.

- vi. While undertaking the review for the concerned person(s) for the application of the Malus or the Clawback arrangement based on any trigger events, when determining accountability of the concerned person or group of persons, the NRC shall be guided by the principles of proportionality, culpability or proximity or nexus to the event or misconduct. Bonafide error/s of judgment where there is no misconduct, willful or intentional act/ omission or gross negligence or lack of integrity, may not be treated as trigger under this Policy.
- vii. Prior to taking action the Management and the NRC shall ensure due regard to the Principles of Natural Justice.
- viii. Unless otherwise specified, the time horizon for the applicability of malus/Clawback clause shall be four years or the deferral period of the Variable Pay, whichever is higher, from the date of grant in case of share linked instrument and date of payment in case of cash bonus.
- ix. On deciding to invoke Malus or Clawback, NRC will have power to take any of the following action basis the nature and severity of trigger

#### In case of Malus Clause

- Cancel part or full vesting of the deferred cash or share linked component due for vesting in that particular year
- Cancel part or full vesting of entire unvested deferred cash or share linked component which are to be vested in future years

## In case of Clawback Clause:

- Recovery of part or full cash component of deferred Variable Pay paid over the applicable period
- Recovery of part or full benefit (in form of shares or cash equivalent of shares)
  accrued to the employee on account of exercise of share linked instrument
- Forfeiture of part or full vested but unexercised share linked instrument vested during the applicable period

# 2.4 Remuneration of Other employees

The remuneration of other employees is fixed from time to time as per the guiding principles outlined above and considering industry standards and cost of living. In addition to basic salary, they are also provided perquisites/ allowances and retirement benefits as per schemes of the Company and statutory requirements, where applicable. Policy of motivation /reward are applicable to this category of personnel is as mentioned

**Motivation /Reward** - A performance appraisal may be carried out annually and promotions/increments/ rewards are decided based on the appraisal and recommendation of the concerned Executive Director/ MD & CEO, where applicable, as per Company Rules.

The annual variable pay/ performance incentive is linked to the performance of the Company/respective Divisions in general and their individual performance for the relevant year measured against specific Key Result Areas.

For employees in Risk & Control functions, the variable pay, and the fixed salary increment shall be based on the performance on functional objectives and goals and shall not be based on the performance of business units which are subject to their control and/or oversight

#### 2.5 Loans and/or advances

The Company may grant temporary loans and advances to its full time confirmed employees (excluding Whole Time Director/MD/Executive Director, (as defined under Companies Act, 2013), Company Secretary (CS), Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Appointed Actuary, Auditor or any person in accordance with whose directions or instructions the Board of Directors or any one or more of the Directors is or are accustomed to act) either on hypothecation of property or on personal security or otherwise.

The loans or temporary advances to full time confirmed employees can be granted at the discretion of the Company with the approval of the Managing Director & CEO and CFO only for the following purposes:

- Advance for festival
- · Advance for Funeral expenses;
- Advance for Marriage expenses;
- Advance for travelling domestic or overseas for official purposes;
- Advance for purchasing Mobile Phone as per Company policy;
- Advance for Medical Emergencies for self/Family

Provided further that the aggregate of all loans taken together by a full-time employee shall not exceed three month's gross salary of an employee or Rupees One Crore whichever is lower at any point in time.

Any loans or advances granted under the policy shall be interest free and shall form part of compensation/remuneration package of such employee subject to applicable taxes and shall not be included for Available Solvency Margin calculation. The tenure of the loan/advances and recovery process shall be as stated in the HR policies of the Company.

# 2.7 Special payout for employees

In case of any unfortunate eventuality (death) of an employee, RQBE may pay special payout to nominee, subject to MD & CEO's approval on case-to-case basis.

#### 3 Review and Disclosure

Information on the total remuneration of members of the Company's Board of Directors, Managing Director and Executive Directors and KMPs may be disclosed in the Board's report and the Company's annual report / website as per statutory and regulatory requirements as issued from time to time.

The Board will review the contents of, and compliance with, this Policy annually. This Policy shall be effective from the date of approval of the policy by the Board. The NRC shall be responsible monitoring and implementing this policy.

### Performance Appraisal

The MD & CEO will conduct annual performance appraisals for all employees to monitor and review the appropriateness of each remuneration package.

#### Board

The Board will be responsible for approving the remuneration strategy for Directors, KMPs and senior management of the Company. In determining this, the Board will consider the recommendations from the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, prevailing market conditions, performance of the individual and the business strategies and objectives of the Company, subject to the regulatory guidelines issued from time to time.

# Human Resources

The Human resources/ Compliance division of the company will monitor compliance with this policy.

# Annexure 1

- 1. Managing Director and the Chief Executive Officer
- 2. Whole-time Director
- 3. Chief Financial & Operating Officer
- 4. Appointed Actuary
- 5. Chief Investment Officer
- 6. Company Secretary, Chief Risk & Compliance Officer,
- 7. Chief Underwriting & Head Reinsurance
- 8. Chief Technology Officer
- 9. Chief Claims Officer
- 10. Chief Distribution Officer
- 11. Head Human Resources